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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The directors present their strateglc report for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Principal activities

The principal activity of the cbmpany c’ontindes to be the sale, hire and servncmg of materials
handling equipment as well as the development, installation and service of mtraloglstlcs
solutions.

Review of ‘business

2021 was a year of recovery, where economic growth contributed greatly to the- business
success. Sales have picked up due to the better market prospects and as a consequence, -
turnover returned to pre-pandemic levels at £200,490k (2020: £189,945k). This growth has also .

contributed to an improvement of operatlng profitability to £7, 775k (2020: £6 ,758Kk).

The company has leveraged the contlnued profitable performance to ensure cash ﬂows also ‘
remain on a healthy level.

Key performancemdlcators

The company continues to place a strategic emphasis on long-term financial stability and
retains a strong balance sheet posutlon underpinned by a focus on workmg capital and risk
management

Net assets excluding the defined benefit pension scheme have decreased to £48,022k (2020:
£52 542k)-mainly due to an increase in short-term Creditors towards the year-end, following
successful sales activity in the 4th quarter 2021 as well as a build-=up of material (and
respective liabilities) for major Automation projects under construction. Accumulated cash and
cash equivalents, together with amounts placed on short term deposnts in group facmtles
amounted to £41,991k (2020: 56,559k). :

- The valuation of the defined. benefit pension scheme (Jungheinrich UK Limited Retirement
Benefit Scheme) on an IAS 19 basis stood at £20,084k as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
£9,894k). The key reason for the change in the balance sheet asset is an increase in the
_ discount rate and actual inflation being lower than assumed over the period, which both
" decreases the value of the defined benef t obhgahon

The latest tnennlal valuation of the DB Scheme, dated 6 April 2019, showed a deficit of £3.7m
calculated on a technical provisions basis, and a funding level of 98%. This shows a positive
development against the previous triennial valuation dated 6 April 2016 which showed a deficit
of £17.7m and funding level of 91%. Following the latest triennial valuation, the company has
agreed to continue with the current level -of contributions with an estimated timeline of
December 2024 for the recovery of the deficit. The company have also agreed with the schemie
. trustees a target to fund the scheme toa po:nt of self-suffi c:ency by 2032.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
"(CONTINUED)

Future developments

The economy has recently suffered under recent political events, accumulating to the Russian
invasion of Ukraine in March 2022, The impact of the resulting economic shock, with rising
inflation and interest rates, while economic growth is slowing down is and will likely continue
to impact on the business. Direct consequences are a higher cost for materials and services
across the supply chain, as well as extended lead times and pressure on stock holdings and
. therefore Working Capital. These effects create a relatively he|ghtened level of uncertainty for
the company.

However, the experience and performance of the company throughout 2020 and 2021, during
the pandemic, as well as a robust financial position, and a full order book gives the directors
a high level of confidence in the adaptability of the business in the face of present economic
challenges, enabling a renewed focus on growmg the business despite the. prevalent
pressures to dellver best in class products and services to its customer base

Prlncypal risks and uncertainties

The company is exposed to a number of commercial, operational, legal and financial risks as
a result of its business activities.

The directors place a strong emphasis on the early identification and proactive management
of risks and opportunities as part of the company’s corporate governance framework. This has
rarely been more of a critical factor for the company than in recent years and looking forward,
as the COVID-19 pandemic and the Russian invasion of Ukraine has amplified the level of risk
attached to the economic environment in which the company carries out its business activities.

The company endeavours to quuckly react to new rlsks and minimise the impact of these as
far as possible through timely, appropriate and coordinated measures.

The directors have continued to intens‘ify efforts to manage financial risk and secure access
to liquidity in case of severe downside scenarios. Further information on the management of
financial risks is included in the Directors’ report.

The company operates in a mature market and, as such, faces significant pressure from
competitors and this is expected to continue for the foreseeable future. This risk is-countered
by a range of measures including the product portfolio offered -by the group, which is
continually being enhanced for the benefit of customers, the expanding scope of services, a
strong focus on price-relevant sales and the ability to offer attractive financing solutions,
supported by fellow group financing entities. The company and the group is able to offer
customers industry leading solutions to the challenges posed by Industry 4.0.



JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

. Corporate Governance — Section 172(1) Statement

The Executive Management Team is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and stewardship. Each director continues to be mindful of his/her statutory duty to promote
. the success of the company for the benefit of the members as a whole, and in doing so having
regard (amongst other matters) to those factors set out in section 172(1)(a) to (f) of the
Companies Act 2006 as set out below.

- Collectively the Executive Management Team recognises how having regard to these and
other relevant factors and stakeholder groups in their decision-making contributes to the

-success of the company. Depending on the matter in question, the relevance of differerit

~ stakeholder interests and other factors will inevitably vary and the Executive Management

Team may have to make difficult decisions based on competing priorities, which means thatit =

“may not always be possible to provide a favourable outcome for all stakeholders.

On appointment to the Executive Management Team, the directors are provided with ah
induction programme. This includes a briefing on the directors’ statutory duties and directors
are also provided with various opportunmes to meet key stakeholders

Ahead of all Executlve Management Team meetings, the dlrectors are supplied with
information which highlights relevant stakeholder considerations and other factors considered
relevant to the matter under consideration. Members of the Executive Management Team,
and other key employees, attend and. make. presentations as appropriate at meetmgs
including in relation to the outcome of stakeholder engagement.

A programme of strategic and other reviews, together with trammg provided dunng the year, '

ensures that the directors contlnually update their skills and knowledge.

: The directors of Junghelnnch UK lelted consider, both mduwdually and together that they
have acted in good faith in the way they believe would be most likely to promote the success
of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole (having regard to the stakeholders

. and matters set out in s172(1)(a-f) of the Companies Act 2006) in the decisions taken during

the year ended-31 December 2021, and in domg so have regard, among other matters, to the
following: .
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED , '
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(CONTINUED)

J

Corporate Governance - Section 172(1) Statemeni (continued)

Consideration

Response

The likely
consequences of

any decision in the
long term

The Board of Directors regularly reviews the company's long term | .
strategy, which encompasses not only the current phase ‘of

development, but also future areas of growth. At every meeting the
directors review the progress against strategic priorities and the
changing shape of the business portfolio. The directors also receive
regular updates and reports on progress of the wider Jungheinrich
Group strategy, including the development of next strategic phases.

The dlrectors have a strong mutual understanding of the business
mode! and decisions are made always with the long term strategy in
mind. The strategy set by the Executive Management Team is intended

'| to strengthen the company’s position as a leading supplier of materials

handling equipment and intralogistics solutions while keeping safety
and social responsibility fundamental to its business approach.

In 2021 items on the Board of Directors' agenda have regularly been
linked to the relevant aspect of strategy and the proposed timeframe
for delivery of the expected action. The board includes relevant
specialist areas from within the organisation in their board meetings
and regularly requests the input of external advisors about what issues
might frame the commercial environment in which the company will
operate in future.

The resulting assessment of future development helps inform.the
Board of Directors’ decision-making and the balance between short-
term and long term measures and actions. Ultimately, Executive
Management Team decisions are taken in what it believes to be the | .
best interest of the long-term financial success of the company and its
stakeholders. . '
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JUNGHEINRICH.UK LIMITED |
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

Corpo,rate Governance - Section 172(1) Statement (continued)

Consideration Response

}. The interests of | The directors recognise that a highly motivated and skilled workforce is
the company's critical for the success of the business in achlevmg its strateglc

| employees . ambitions.

The health and wellbeing.of the workforce is a high priority for -the

directors. Pay, benefits and other support provisions are kept under

| regular review by the directors to ensure employees have the support
they need from the company. '

The workplace environment is considered key to maintaining a
motivated workforce. . The company is constantly reviewing -its
infrastructure portfolio and, in September 2021, the new operational
Hub in the north of England was opened to provide modern and flexible
{ work environment for the local workforce. The second phase of that-
project will look into developing the company’'s Headquarter in Milton
Keynes to deliver the same benefit to its workforce in the south.

2021 was still much affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, which the
company continued fo address with flexible working solutions to ensure -
the workforce , customers and business partners remained healthy and
. | safe when.conducting business with or for the company.

The majority of business premises remained closed for long periods
throughout the year and office-based employees remained home
working as far as possible, with restricted and controlled attendance to
company sites. Where appropriate, additional personal protective |
equipment and testing kits have been provided to ensure employees
can continué to .work safely. The company has worked closely with
suppliers and customers to ensure a safe working environment is
provided in whichever Iocatlons employees and business partners are.
asked to work.

The company has worked hard to enhance communications with the'
workforce in the form of newsletters, email announcements and more
.informal online mesetings .to ensure the workforce continue to be
engaged and informed on company results, strategy and policies as
well as changes to the economic environment. The company's
Business Continuity Team is meeting regularly to ensure employees
are kept well informed, and matters of employee wellbemg are dealt |
with promptly and effectlvely




JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(CONTINUED)

Corporate Governance - Section 172(1) Statement (continued)

Response

Consideration

The interests of
the company’s
employees
(continued)

To ensure that it continues to involve employees in decisions the |.
company has launched a platform called Engagement Multiplier in.

2021. This is for the purpose of monitoring and improving engagement
levels across the business, listening to employees’ ideas and concerns

and creating open and honest feedback. This links with the recent

Investors In People re-accreditation (awarded Silver Status) in early
2022, which shows a clear demonstration and commitment from the

| company to involve, develop and engage with their employees.

the company's
business
relationships with
suppliers,
customers and
others

The need to foster

The Jungheinrich UK Strategy 2025+ places customers firmly i'n the
centre of the company's approach and decision making, supporting

customers’ needs with sustainable, energy-effcnent intralogistics |

solutions in a consultative selling approach

In order to deliver on that commitment; the company requires strong,

mutually beneficial relationships with all partners along the supply |

chain, i.e. customers, vendors, logistics and other business.partners.

The company engages with customers through our dedicated sales
and customer services teams who are tasked with helping our
customers become more: operationally efficient in their materials
handling processes, thereby becoming better. able to meet their own

'| objectives. For example, all functions in Sales Operations have been

constantly supporting the operational sales team and therefore our
existing customer and prospect base by ensuring equipment
availability during required peak seasons and proactively engaged with
customers on their upcoming demands. Furthermore, regular customer
review meetings are scheduled with individual customers to ensure
fleet performance ‘is in line with agreed service levels, establish any
trends and discuss issues, and that all relevant compliance elements
are covered to cement the company’s position as a premlum supplier
in the market.

Additionally, the company operates. an online "‘Proﬂshop" offering,
which caters for less complex requirements of our customers.

The company operates a robust supplier onboarding process and |-

carries out regular supplier audits to ensure adherence to the
company’s standards and expectations and to verify the provision of

| goods and services being supplied has continued as expected and
agreed. :




JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED ' :
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021'

(CONTINUED)

Corporate Governance - Section 172(1) Statement (continued) .

Response ‘

Consideration

company's
operations on the
community and the
environment

' The lmpact of the .

The environmental and societal impact ofJunghelnnch UK has a major
and distinct part in its rédefined strategic objectives for 2025+. The
company pursues a program that seeks to accelerate the reduction of|

the impact of its operations on the envnronment and to become carbon

neutral by 2030 or earlier, measuring and reporting its performance :
against the targets that it has set for itself.

During 2021, the company has contlnued to focus heavily on improving
the fuel efficiency of its vehicle fleet by beginning to move all its
passenger-fleet to an electric or hybrid fleet-portfolio. Because of the
continued restrictions due to the pandemic travel activity was still very
restricted and contributed to reduced use of energy in: general and |

fossil fuel for the vehicle fleets specn' cally.

Additionally, due to site consolidation in the north and the continued
closure of sites, use of electricity and heatlng across the business has
remained subdued

the company
maintaining a
reputation for high
standards of
business conduct

The desirability of

‘| own “green journey”. This is driven by Jungheinrich UK's
. portfolio as well as the approach to solution design.

The company’s policies on a wide range of business and ethics related
practices are regularly reviewed and updated as necessary so as. to
ensure continued compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and good industry practice, including its Code of Conduct, Modern |

Slavery Statements, and Tax Strategy, to ensure. that high standards |-
| are maintained both wnthm the company and the business relationships

it mamtams

The company ‘endeavors to work to the highest quality standards in all

| areas of the business. To enable and promote continual improvement,

Jungheinrich UK complies with a high level of ISO certification and
other standards as relevant, to manage business risk. The company

| subjects itself to audits and re- assessments, in order to maintain and |

improve performance.

During 2021, the'éompany initiated the process to become 1ISO27001
certified, to demonstrate its commitment to . high standards of
Information Security, which it endeavors to be awarded in 2022.

" { Another major focus in respect of high stendards is- the. environmental

sustainability and how-Jungheinrich can support customers on their
product

8




JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(CONTINUED)

Corporate Governance - Section 172(1) Statement (continued)

Consideration

Response

The desirability of
the company
maintaining a
reputation for high
standards of
business conduct
(continued)

From its HR-function, the company monitors several strategic
Performance Indicators that focus on attrition, voluntary leavers,
sickness absence and recruitment. We ensure that these measures -
are under on-going review (both internally and externally) to ensure
any adverse movement is detected early and mitigating controls be
put in place to ensure a high level of continuity, which is crucial.in
establishing a culture of high standards within the business. In 2021,
the company has introduced the Engagement Multiplier that will help
to monitor employee engagement levels and aid in developing the
company culture in respect of high standards and business conduct.

The need to act
fairly as between
members of the |
company

After Weighing up all .relevant faetors, the directors consider which
course of action best enables delivery of its strategy in the long-term,
taking into consideration the impact on all stakeholders.

HR ensure that the company maintains fair, legal and updated policies,
giving employees and managers procedures and guidelines to promote
a good and fair working culture. HR's role is also to proactively promote
fairness and consistency across the business and teams.

Managers have a duty to hold regular team meetings, as well as face |.
to face meetings with individual team members and the company
introduced tools to ensure that these take place on a regular basis and
that individuals’ concerns, also in respect of fairness, are being heard,
documented and addressed

The Executive Management Team are committed to keeping engagement methods under A
review to ensure they remain effective and ensure that stakeholder interests are appropriately
considered over the course of decision-making.

The Straiegic repoﬁ was approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

R’os_enkranz
Director

26/3/ 2022




JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The dlrectors present their annual report and audited f nancnal statements for the year ended 31
December 2021. .

Results and-dividends

The company's ‘eroﬁt for the financial year was £5,886k (2020: £6,522k). After the year end,
the directors have declared and paid a dividend of £5,000k payable to the sole shareholder in
the company, Jungheinrich UK Holdings Limited: (2020: £6,000k). '

Future developments .
Future developments are included within-the Strategic report.
' Independe'nt auditors -

PneewaterhduseCooper's LLP have e)kpfessed their willingness to eontlnue in office as
auditors. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2)
of the Companles Act 2006.

Flnanmal rlsk management ob]ectlves and policies

The company's activities give rise to a number of fi nancial Tisks including price risk, foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. Further details on these risks and
~ the company’s approach to risk management are included below.

‘Price Risk: :

The company is exposed to prlce nsk asa result of its operat|ons The company sources most
- supplies from other group companies at agreed prices. The company has no exposure to

equity securities price risk as it holds no listed or other equity investments. -

Foreign exchange risk

The company purchases the majorlty of its supplles from fellow group subsidiaries at pnces
~denominated in Euros. As such, the company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on

outstanding Euro balances as well as the risk of longer term exchange rate trends impacting

the cost of goods purchased, and therefore profitability. The company seeks to mitigate foreign

exchange risk by entering into forward exchange rate contracts with third party banks covermg

future forecast purchases.

Credit risk :
The company has |mplemented policies that require appropriate . credit checks on potentual
" customers before sales are made. The amount of exposure to any individual company is
subject to a limit, which is assessed by the. cred|t management function with reference to’ _
external credit management agencues :

Liquidity risk :

The company's planning, forecasting and working caputal management processes are
designed to mitigate liquidity risk arising from ongoing trade and any planned growth. When
required, the company has access to external loans secured by other companies within the
Jungheinrich group. The liquidity of the company is dlscussed further in the going concern
consideration |n note 1.4 to the financial statements.

- 10



JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Réporting

Jungheinrich UK Ltd recognises that its operations have an environmental impact and the
directors are committed to monitoring and reducing emissions year-on-year. The directors are
also aware of the company's reporting obligations under The Companies (Directors’ Report)
and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018. As such,
- this year the company has enhanced its energy and carbon reporting to meet these new
requirements and increase the transparency with which the company’s environment impact is
communicated to stakeholders

Results
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting in the UK Consumption Emissibns
for the year ended 31 December 2021 kWh tCO2
Scope 1 ‘
Stationary combustion ' ' 1,728,070 367
Mobile combustion ‘ : - 7406474 . . 4752
Total scope 1 . 9,1 34,54‘_" 2,119
" Scope 2 .
Purchased electricity — market based 933,519 198
Total scope 2 - : : 933,519 ' 198
Scope 3

Other indirect emissions from business travel and transportation -. -
Total scope 3 N : ] : o : N -

Total energy consumption used to calculate emissions / total gross

emissions 10,068,063 - 2,317

Intensity ratio: tCO.e per full time employee : . 3.00
i \

Methodology

- The company reports on all material emissions in scope 1 and 2, plus. selected scope 3
emissions, using an operational control approach. The methodology used to compile the GHG
(Greenhouse Gas) emissions inventory is in accordance with the requirements of the following
standards: the WRI GHG Protocol Corporate Standard (revised version) and Defra’s
Environmental Reporting Guidelines: |nc|ud|ng Streamllned Energy and Carbon Reporting
reqmrements (March 2019).- '

1




JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
'DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (continued)
I‘Energy Efficiency Action '

We work hard to reduce our energy consumptlon and assocuated carbon emissions through
the course of eaoh year.

In the period covered by the report, the Company. has seen an increase in energy
consumptlon However, this was as a result of increased travel when compared to the previous
- year's report due. to the return to normal activities during 2021. Despite the overall increase,
there has been a reduction on both stationary: combustlon (-14 tCO2e) and purchased
electricity (-17.61 tCOZe)

In 2022, the Company have rewewed the real estate strategy in line with the carbon reductlon
plan and will be closing the Sheffield office. There will be further reductions as a resuit of the
-new building in Omega Park; which became operational in October 2021. This new building
has photovoltaic technology and is expected to provide an energy saving of 20% kWh/saft,
equating to a minimum 10% energy saving on kWh.per annum. We continue to review our
fleet and all new company cars-leased are electric or hybrid: vehicles. We continue to use our
management systems (ISO 50001 & 14001) to identify energy eff iciency actions and drive -
continuous |mprovement :

Relevance

We have ensured the GHG inventory appro_p’riafely reflects the material GHG emissions of'the
Company across its operations in the UK, during 2021 and serves the decision-making needs
of users, both internal-and external to the Company.

Completeness

Jungheinrich UK Ltd continues to use the operational control approach for defining the scope
of its GHG emissions inventory and calculates total direct scope 1, 2. Data on someé emissions
sources remains challenging to obtain, and therefore has been excluded from the overall GHG
" emissions summary for 2021 for example: emissions from business travel in rental cars or
employee - owned vehicles where the company is responsible for purchasing the fuel.

Accuracy

To our knowledge data are considered accurate wvthln the hmlts of the quality and
completeness of the data provided.

Ethical code of conduct and Brlbery Act
The directors operate an ethical code of conduct and an Anti-Bribery policy that they take very

seriously and expect all their employees, suppliers and customers to ablde by and respect in
all matters of business. . , :

)
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* JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED |
DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

Labour

The company is comimitted to ensuring it conducts its business in an ethical and transparent
manner. Through a number of internal policies and controls, the company has sought to ensure
that its supply chain is free from unethical practices including slavery and-human trafficking,
and has-continued to adhere to the principals and requnrements of the Modern Slavery Act
2015 throughout the period.

As per section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015, the company’s Modern Slavery Statement
is reviewed and approved by the board of directors on an annual basis and published on its
website. In May 2022 the directors approved the company’s Modern Slavery Statement for the
2021 financial year, which details the company's commitment, policies, processes and actions
taken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking are not taking place in its supply chains or
any part of its business. More information on the company's statement can be found on its
website.

Employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered with due regard
to the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of
staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the company
continues and the appropriate support is provided. It is the policy of the company that the
training, career development and promotion of a disabled person should, as far as possible, be
identical to that of a person who does not suffer from a disability.

The company strongly values the engagement of employees at all levels and places emphasis
on the importance of good communication across the business. This helps to ensure views are
taken into account when decisions are made that are likely to affect the interests of employees
and that all employees are aware of the financial and economic performance of the business.
Engagement with all employees continues through formal and informal meetings, newsletters
and other media communications. During the COVID-19 pandemic, the importance of employee
engagement has increased, whilst at the same time presenting more of a challenge as -
employees were asked to work from home where possible. The company has sought to meet
this challenge through implementation of technologlcal solutions to facilitate communication and

engagement across the workforce. o

The company’s apprenticeship programme is well-established and continues to be a key source
of talent for the business. The programme offers a broad variety of apprenticeships at different
levels across the business, putting the apprentices at the heart of their development, building
on an ethos of the highest quality and ensuring that through their training, they have the best
start to their career with us.

Directors

The directors of the company, including any changes during the year and up to the date of
signing these fi nanC|aI statements are listed on page 1. .

13




'JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 .
3 (CONTINUED) -

Directors’ qualrfymg third party mdemmty provusuon

The company has granted an indemnity to ane or more of its dlrectors agamst liability in
respect of proceedings brought by third parties, subject to the conditions set out in the
Companies Act 2006. Such qualifying third party indemnity provision was in force during the -
“financial year and remams in force as at the date of approving the directors’ report

Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, whlch the dlrectors believe
to be appropnate for the reasons outlined below.

“Taking into account changes in tradnng performance, the company's forecast and projections -
enable the directors to be confident that the company can operate within its bank-facilities
currently in place. Jungheinrich AG, the ultimate parent company, has allocated group banking
facilities for Jungheinrich UK Limited, which the directors believe would provide sufficient
_ support in the absence of any other bank facilities. Additionally, Jungheinrich AG has committed
to provide ongoing financial support for a minimum.of 12 months from the date of approval of
these financial statements sufficient to enable the company to meet its obllgatlons as they fall
due

The company has a resilient balance sheet position, with net assets of £68,106k as at 31
December 2021 (2020: £62,436k), having made a profit after tax of £5,886k for the year then
ended (2020: £6,522k) and held a cash and cash equivalents balance of £19,986k as at 31
December 2021.(2020: £23 059k)

The company participates in a group cash-deposit arrangement under which the company.
held a positive balance of £22 005k at 31 December 2021 (2020: £33,500k). This balance is
included in the balance sheet as an amount owed by group undertakings as set out within note
13. Under the arrangements held with the group treasury function, the.company is able to gain

immediate access on a monthly basis to these deposnted funds and determlne whether to.hold ' '

the cash or re- deposn w:th group treasury to earn a return

Accordingly, the directors are ‘confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue
in operational existence and to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at'least 12 months from
the date of approval of these financial statements and they continue to adopt the gomg concern
_basis of accountmg in preparing these financial statements.

Credltor payment pollcy

Our policy is to pay suppliers within their agreed terms. All supphers are informed of our policy
on the establlshment of a new supplier account.

Political contributions

‘No political donations were made during the year (2020: £nil). -

t
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED |
DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

Statement of di‘rectors’ tesponsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual report and the fi nancnal statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation. :

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under. company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing the financial statements the directors
are required to: :

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consnstent!y,

o state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have
been followed, subject to any material departures dlsclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis unless it is mappropnate to
presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for safeguardlng the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also respon5|ble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient:
to show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial |
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
(CONTINUED)

Directors’ confirmations

In the case of each director in-office at the date the directors’ report is approved:

. sb far as thé director is aware, there is no relevant audit information -of ‘which the

company's auditors are unaware; and

e they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make

themselves aware of any relevant audit mformatlon and to establish that the company s

auditors are aware of that mformatlon

On behalf of the board =~

N Rosenkranz S 26/9/2022
,Dirdctor L -

Sherbourne House
Sherbourne Drive
Tilbrook

Milton Keynes
Buckinghamshire
MK7 8HX
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Jungheinrich UK Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Jungheinrich UK Limited’s financial statements:

e giveatrue aﬁd fair view of the state.of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2021.and of its profit for the year then
ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Frameworl®, and applicable law); and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Wae have audited the financial statements, included within the-Annual report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Report™),
which camprise: the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021; the Profit and Loss Account, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opmlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and apphcable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed is sufficient-and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identiﬁe‘d any material uncanaimiesirelating to events or conditions that,
individually or coltectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concem for a period of
at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concemn basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However. because not all future events or condltlons can be predu:ted this conclusion Is not a guarantee as to the company 's
ability to continue as a gomg concem.




Independent auditors’ report to the
members of J unghelnrlch UK Limited
(contlnued)

Our responsibilities and the responsmllltles of the directors with .respect to going concern are descnbed in.the relevant

. sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this repont, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial slatements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures o conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financlal -
slatements or a material misstatement of the other information. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repon based
on these respon5|b||mes

With respect to the Strategic repon and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK’
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to repon certain opinions
and matters as described below. :

Strategic report and Directors' report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information glven in the Strategic report and
Directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is conmslant with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable Iega| requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did

not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' report.

- Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

As explained more fully in the Statement of dlrectors responsmxhtles in respect of the financial statements, the directors are
responsubla forthe preparahon of the financial stataments in accordance with the appiicable fmmework and for being satistied -
that they QIVB a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such intemal controf as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether d{.ue to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemnative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Qur objectiveé are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

_misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor, and to issue an audifors’ rgpoft that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
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Indebe’ndent auditors’ report to the
members of Jungheinrich UK Limited
(continued) |

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emror and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements. :

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
. to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on ocur understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to taxation legislation, the Pensions Act 2014 and the Companies Act 2006, and we considered the
extent to which noh-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We evaluated management’s
incentives and opporntunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of contrals),
and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate joumal entries and management bias in
accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included: ‘

o Detailed discussions with management and walkthrough procedures to understand and evaluate the controls designed
to prevent and detect irregularities and fraud;

» Reviswing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

« Reviewed legal expenses to identify any inconsistencies with other information provided by management;

» Assessing significant judgements and eslimates including those relating to revenue from long-term customer contracts,
defined benefit obligations and the disclosures included on these balances within the financial statements;

» Incorporating elements of unpredictability; and

. Identn‘ylng and testing journal entries, in particular journal entries posted with unusual account comblnallons

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions refiected in the financiat
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example forgery or intentional misrepresentations, .
or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the, financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this repon

This repont, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’'s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companles Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any ollher pi:rpo;e or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it rlnay :
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Indepe‘nden‘t' auditors’ report to the
‘members of Jungheinrich UK Limited
(continued)

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
. Under |he Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion'

« we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

‘e adequate accounting records have not been kept-by the company, or retums adequate for our audrt have not been .
received from branches not vnsnted by us; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the-accounting records and retumns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility. .

Mark Foster (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PﬁcewatemouseCobpers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Milton Keynes

27 September 2022
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" JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
£000 £000
Turnover : _ -3 200,490 189,945 -
Costof sales - ' o C (125,362) (119,078)
Gross profit ’ 75,128 70,867
Other opérating income : 51 429
Staff costs - . ‘ 5 (44,751) (41,609)
Depreciation and amounts written off tangible and . :
intangible fixed assets 10, 11 (8,073) -(7,332)
Other operating expenses : : (14,580) (15,597) .
Operating profit ‘ 8 -~ 7,775 6,758
(Loss) / gain on derivative financial instruvments, ) 22 ) (857) 793
interest receivable and similar income 6 ' 311 . 502
Interest payable and similar expenses 7 ’ (200)' (154) -
Profit before taxation . - T 7,029 7,899
Tax on profit ‘ : o9 o (1,143) (1,377)
Profit for the financial year . ' 5,886 6,522

All results are derived from continuing operations.

The notes on pages 25 to' 56 form a part of these financial statements.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
“FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

a Note .

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income / (expense) .

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: -
Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit pension scheme 21
Deferred tax (charge) / credit on actuarial losses and gains 9

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:

(Losses) / gains from the measurement of financial
Instruments with a hedging relationship 22.
Amounts transferred to profit and loss account 22
. Deferred tax attributable to measurement of financial '

instruments with a hedging relationship _ 9
Other comprehensive income / (expense})

Total comprehensive income for the yeaf ‘

2021

2020

£'000 £000
5,886 6,522

9,493  (4,998)
(2,963) 653
(4,098) 2,206
3,103 105

249 (392) -
5784  (2,426)
4,096

11,670

The notes on pages 25 to 56 form a part of these financial statements.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED. .
- BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note ) 2021 2020
. .£'000 £'000
Fixed assets o : . . .
Intangible assets . . 10 2 8
Tangible assets . . 11 ‘ 38,065 27,114
Total fixed assets 4 o . 38,067 27,122
Current assets - '
Deferred tax assets - : : .20 " 1,672 1,911
Stocks 12 _ 24,395 13,446 .
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year ) 13 - 81,840 87,409
Debtors: amounts falling due after more than one year 14 - 15,893 15,189
Derivative financial assets held for trading 22 - 133
Derivative financial assets designated for hedging : 22 : T . 133
Cash and cash equivalents . I 15 19,986 . 23,059
" Total current assets ’ ' 143,786 141,280
~Creditors: amounts falling due within one year : 16 © (81,469) (68,669)
Derivative financial liabilities held for trading 22 (817) . (93)
Derivative financial liabilities designated for hedging 22 (1,011) (149)
Total current liabilities o _ (83,297) (68,911)
Net current assets . ' : 60,489 72,369
Total assets less current liabilities : A 98,556 = 99,491
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 17 (28,845)  (31,568)
Deferred tax liabilities . 20 (4,685) (1,668)
Provisions for liabilities ’ ’ - 19 . (17,004) " (13,713)
Net éssets excluding pension asset - . ‘48,0‘22 -52,542
Net pension asset s _ 21 : 20,084 9,894
Net assets including pension asset : - 68,106 62436
Capital and reserves : ' .
Called up share capital 23 34,000 34,000
Hedging reserve _ , (758) (13)
Profit and loss account - . - 34,864 28,449
Total Shareholders’ funds ‘ . . © 68,106 - 62,436

The notes on pages 25 to 56 form a part of these financial statements.

The financial- statements on pages 21 to 56 were appfoved by the bdard of directors and -
eut rised for issue on. . 26/9/ 2022 . They were signed on its behalf by:

senkranz
/biréctor '
/ ]
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- JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2021

‘Balance at 1 January 2020
Profit for the year-

Other comprehensrve (expense) / income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
‘Balance at 31 December 2020
Balance at 1 January 2021
Profit for the year
, Other comprehensive income / (expense) for the year
Total comprehensrve‘mcome'for the year
Dividend

Balance at 31 December 2021

Profit and

Called up
share loss -~ Hedging .
capital account reserve Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
34,000 | 26,272 (1,932) 58,340
- 6,522 c. 6,522
- - (4,345) 1,919 (2,426)
» 2477 1919 4,096
" 34,000 28,449 (13) 62,436
34,000 28,449 - (13) 62,436
- 5,886 - 5,886
- 6,529 (745) 5,784
- 12,415 (745) 11,670
, - (6,000) - (6,000)
34,000 34,864 (758) 68,106

The profit and loss account reserve represents accumulated retained earnings

The hedglng reserve represents ‘the cumulative amount of gains and. losses on hedglng
- mstruments deemed effective in cash flow hedges.

‘The notes on pages.25 to 56 form a part of these financial statements. .
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 |

PRINCIPAL ACCOU NTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied
consistently throughout the year and the preceding year.

1.1 ' Genefa| information

Jungheinrich UK Limited is a private company limited by shares and incorporated, domiciled
and registered in England, United Kingdom. The registered number is 00757192 and the
" address of the registered office is Sherbourne House, Sherbourne Drive, Tilbrook, Milton
Keynes, Buckinghamshire, MK7 8HX. The nature of the company’s operatlons and its principal
act|V|t|es are set out in the Strateglc Report on page 2.

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the company operates (its functional currency).

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under Financial Reporting Standard 100
(FRS 100) issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Accordingly, the company has prepared
these financial statements in- accordance with The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
companies reporting under FRS 101 as issued by the Financial Reporting Council and has, in
doing -so, applied the requirements of IFRS 1.6-33 and related appendices. These financial
statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework. :

The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptioris under FRS 101:

e The requirement of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;
¢ The requirements of paragraph 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

“e The requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to
present comparative information in respect of: Paragraph 79(a) (iv) of IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements; and Paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property Plant and Equment
and Paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38.Intangible Assets;

e The requirement of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38Bm 38c, 38D 40A-D1 111 and
134-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
¢ . The requirement of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows; _
¢ . The requirement of paragraph 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors;. -
The requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures;
The requirements in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose relates party
transactions entered into between two more more members of a group;

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with FRS 101 did not require the use of
any critical accounting estimates or any significant areas of judgement.

1. 2 Changes in accounting policy

There have been no changes in applicable accounting standards which have a materlal impact on these
financial statements Accordingly, there have been no changes in accounting policy for the financial year.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED .
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTlNG POLlCIES (CONTINUED) ,
1.3 Basis of accounting -

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
- revaluation of certain. financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each
~ reporting period as explained in the accounting policy for financial instruments below, together
with the measurement of the defined benefit pension schieme assets and liabilities as explained
in the accounting policy for pensions disclosed below. Historical cost is generally based on the -
fair value of the cons:deratlon glven m exchange for the goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pa|d to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether .
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
- the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement purposes in these
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level

1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the.inputs to the fair value measurements are observable

and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are.

described as follows:

*  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are

' observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
-1.4 Going concern

The financial statements are prepared on.a going concem baS|s whlch the d|rectors believe to
be appropnate for the reasons outlined below.

Takmg into account changes in trading performance, the company's ‘forecast and projections

.enable the directors to be confident that the company can operate within its bank facilities

currently in place. Jungheinrich AG, the ultimate parent company, has allocated group banking

facilities for Jungheinrich UK Limited, which the directors believe would provide sufficient support .
in the absence of any other bank facilities. Additionally, Jungheinrich AG-has committed to provide

ongoing financial support for a minimum of 12 months from the date of approval of these financial

statements, sufficient to enable the company to meet its obligations as they fall due.

The company has a healthy balance sheet position, with net assets of £68,106k as at 31
December 2021 (2020: £62,436k), having made a profit after tax of £5,886k for the year then

ended (2020: £6,522k) and held a cash and cash equwalents balance of £19,986k as at 31

December 2021 (2020: £23,059k).

The company participates in a group cash-deposit arrangement, under which the company held
a positive balance of £22,005k at 31 December 2021 (2020: £33,500k). This balance is included
in the balance sheet as an amount owed by group undertakings as set out within note 13. Under
the arrangements held with the group treasury function, the company is able to gain immediate
access on a monthly basis to these deposited funds and determlne whether to hold the cash or

re-deposit with group treasury to earn a return :

Accordingly, the directors are conﬁdent that the company will have sufficient funds to continue in
operational existence and to meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the
~ date of approval of these financial statements and they continue to adopt the gomg concern basis
of accountlng in preparing these financial statements.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.5 Intangible and tangible fixed assets

Purchased intangible assets with a finite useful life are carried at acquisition cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairments. Amortisation is recognised on a straight line basis
over their useful economic life. :

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
. expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses ansmg from derecogpnition of an mtanglble asset -

are recognlsed in profit.or Ioss when the asset is derecogmsed

‘Tang|ble assets are carried at hlstorlcal acqunsmon cost less accumulated deprecuatlon and

~impairments. Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible assets other than freehold land. Trucks on hire are
depreciated using the reducing balance method. All other fixed assets are depreciated at rates

calculated so as.to write off the cost of tangible fixed assets on a straight line basis over the-

expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned.

The principal lives used for this purpose are:
Intangible assets: ' ' : o -
Software . B _ . ‘ 3 - 8 years

Tangible assets: .
Freehold land and builoings' ‘ 30 years
Leased land.and buildings - . ' Remaining lease term
Leased motor vehicles ~ - S Remaining lease term
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment ’ _ 3-10 years
Plant and machinery , 5-10 years
Trucks on hire to customers - o - 6-9years

At each balance sheet date, the company . reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Where the asset does not generate cash ﬂows that are independent from other assets the
company estlmates the recoverable amount of the cash generatlng unit to. WhICI‘I the asset
belongs. ‘

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The value
in use is calculated as the estimated discounted future cash flows. If the recoverable amount of
an asset or cash generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss

If there is an indication that an impairment loss recognised in previous years may no Ionger'exist
or may have decreased, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and the prevuously
recognised |mpa|rment is reversed if approprlate :
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.6 Leases policy

The company accounts for leases under IFRS 16. At inception of a contract, the company,
assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,. or contains, a lease if the -
- contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the company uses the definition of a Iease in IFRS 16.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the
company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the company has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for the Iease and non-lease components as a
single lease component. :

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease -
incentives received. »

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will
be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis
as those of property and equipment. in addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that .
rate cannot be readily determined, the company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
company uses its i_ncremental’borrowing rate as the discount rate.
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" JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PRINC.IPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.6  Leases policy (continned) ‘
As a lessee (continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the follownng

o fixed payments, including in-substance fi xed payments;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate mltlally measured using the

. index or rate as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee

o the exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably cer’tam to
‘exercise, and

‘e lease payments in an opt|onal renewal period if the company is reasonably certaln to

exercise .an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the
company is reasonably certain not to terminate early. '

The lease llablllty is measured at amortlsed cost using the effectuve interest method It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, if there is a change in the company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable
-under a residual value guarantee, if the company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, -extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance ﬁxed
lease payment. '

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding'adjustrnent is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right—of—use asset has been reduced to zero.

,The company presents nght-of—use assets that do not meet the defi nition of investment property

within tangible fixed assets and lease liabilities within creditors in the statement of financial
position. . '
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

"The company has elected not to recogmse right-of-use assets and lease llabllmes for lease of
low-value assets and short-term leases. The company recognises the lease payments
“associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

30

e v



- JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.6 Leases policy (continued)
As a lessor '

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease componentl the company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the bascs of their relative
standalone prices.

When the‘company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers

substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is
" the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this
assessment, the company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major
part of the economic life of the asset.

When the company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests-in the head lease and
the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from. the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. if a
head lease is a short-term lease to which the company applies the exemptlon described above,
then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components then the company applies IFRS
15 to allocate the consideration in the contract

.The company applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net
investment in the lease. The company further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual
values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease.

The company recognises lease payments received under operatmg leases as income on a
-straight-line basis over the lease term.

Generally, the.accounting policies applicable to the company as a lessor in the comparative

_period were not different from IFRS, 16 except for the classification of the sub-lease entered lnto
dunng current reporting period that resulted in a finance lease classification.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):
1.7 Stocks A

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes materials and direct
labour. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completlon and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. A provision
is made for obsolete, slow-movmg or defectlve items where appropriate. -

1.8 - Sale and repurchase transactions

A significant portion of the company's UK sales are through related party leasing companies
whereby the company sells equipment to the leasing company, which in turnenters into a lease
agreement with. the customer. As part of the sale, the company commlts to repurchase the

~ equipment in the future at a specified price.

Consequently, the company has a liability to repurchase equipment in the future, which is
matched by an equivalent asset, being the value of the equipment to be repurchased, subject to
the extent that the agreed repurchase pnce of the eqmpment does not exceed its realisable value
at the tlme of repurchase. oo

vAccordlngly, an asset is recorded on the. balance sheet wuthln Other debtors at the lower of cost

and net realisable value in relation to the equipment to be repurchased, and the corresponding
liability is recorded within creditors payable either within or after one year, accordlng to the timing
of the commltments .

19 Revenue

Revenue is stated net of VAT and trade discounts.

Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the rights and obligations associated with the
goods have been transferred to the customer. No turnover is recognised in relatuon to goods -
expected to be returned under sale and repurchase transactions. :

Revenue from the supply of serwces represents the value of services provided under contracts .:
to the extent that there is a right to consideration, and is recorded at the value of the consideration

- due. For fixed term service contracts, turnover is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
- of the contract. Revenue on short-term servlces rendered is recognised upon job completion.

Where payments are received from customers in ‘advance of services provided, the amounts are
recorded as deferred income and included as part of creditors due within one year.

The company also operates certain installation contracts that may be partially completed at the
balance sheet date. Revenue and profit on these contracts is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract. Expected losses are recognlsed |mmedlately and in full in
the profit and loss account 4

Rental income received under operating leases is recognlsed as descnbed in the companys ’

* accounting policy for leased assets above.
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- PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.10 Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and
Iaws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

| Deferred tax i is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on dlfferences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax values
used in the computation of. taxable profit, and is accounted for usnng the balance sheet liability
method.

Deferred tax is generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profits will be available against which temporary differences can be utilised. -

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable prof it nor the accounting
proﬁt

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is revuewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
- is settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit
and loss account, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive
income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

- The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would

follow: from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover.or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. .

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a Iegally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authorlty and the company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities

“ona net basis..

Current and deferred tax arising in the year are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. ‘
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.11  Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions completed during the year are recorded at the rate of exchange
when the transactions occurred. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ‘pr'evailing at the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of hlstorlcal cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated 4

Exchange differénces are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except where
they arise on certain financial instruments entered into for the purpose of hedging forelgn
currency risk (see below accounting policy on financial instruments).

1.1 2 Pensions E

For the eompanys defi ned contribution scheme, the amounts charged to the profit and loss
account in respect of pension costs and other post-retirement benefits is the contributions
payable for the year on an accruals basis. : :

The company operates a defined benefit pension scheme, the Jungheinrich UK Limited
Retirement Scheme (the scheme). The amounts charged to operating profit are the current
service costs and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments. They are included as part
of staff costs. Past service pension costs are recognised immediately in the profit and. loss
account if the benefits have vested. If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are .
recognised over the period until vesting occurs. The interest cost and the expected return on
assets are shown as a net amount of interést payable and similar charges. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised |mmed|ately in the statement of comprehensive i income:

The scheme is funded, with the assets held separately-from those of the company, in trustee
administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and. liabilities are .
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the curreit rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency
and term to the scheme liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and
are updated at each balance sheet date. The resulting defined benefit asset or liability, is
-presented separately after other net assets on the face of the balance sheet. The pension costs
have been calculated under IAS 19 and assumptions used in the calculations are disclosed in
note 21.

113 Finance costs

As explained below, where financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, the associated
finance costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.14 Financial instruments
(@) Recognition and initial rheasurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are orlgunated
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a sugmf cant fi nancmg component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

(b) Classification of financial assets

_On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortlsed cost; FVOCI -
debt investment; FVOCI equity investment; or FVTPL.

. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the company
changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the -
business model.

A financial asset is measured at ainortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:—

e it is held within a business model ' whose objectlve is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

» its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions:

e itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

- cash flows and selling financial assets; and

¢ its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
" principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held far trading, the company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This
. election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the

- company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

' 1.14 Financial instruments (centinued)

(b) Classification of financial assets (contmued)

Cash and cash equrvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the company’s cash management are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the cash flow
statement.

(c) Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Flnancral assets at FVTPL - these assets (other than derivatives designated as hedging
- instruments) are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, mcludlng any -
interest or dividend income, are recognised in prof it or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost - These assets are subsequently measured at amomsed,
cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and.losses and impairment are recognised in profit
- or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI - these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest methad, foreign exchange gains.and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI.

On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI - these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. -
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a .
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognrsed in
OCl and are never recIassrﬁed to profit-or loss. :

(d) Fmancral liabilities and equity

Financial instruments issued by the company are treated as equrty only to the extent that they :
meet the following two conditions: .

e they include no contractual obligations upon the company to deliver cash or other financial
- assets or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the company; and

~ e where the instrument will or may be settled in. the'company’s own equity instruments, it is
either a non-derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the
company's own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the company’s
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other f nancial assets for a fixed number of its-own
equity instruments.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTlNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.14 Financial instruments (contmued)

(d) Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

' To the extent that this definition is not miet, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial

liability. Where the instrument so classified takes the legal form of the company's own shares,
the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share
premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated

“as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net

gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign éxchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or -
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Intra-group financial instruments

Where the company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness
of other companies within- its group, the ‘company considers these to be insurance.
arrangements and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the company treats the
guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the
company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee. :

(e) _Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are primarily used for the purposes of hedging. The company
has opted to continue to apply the provisions of IAS 39 when accounting for hedges, as
permitted by IFRS 9.

The company designates certam hedging instruments, which include derivatives, in respect of

foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. Hedges of foreign
exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the rélationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its

- strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the

hedge and on an ongoing basis, the company documents whether the hedging instrument is
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged |tem

Note 22 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging
purposes. :
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1. 14 Fmanclal mstruments (contmued)
(e) Derivative financial instruments and h’edging (continued)
Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating -
to the ineffective portion is recognised rmmedrately in proflt orloss, and is included in the ‘other '
garns and losses line item.’

Amounts prevrously recognlsed in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss,
in the same line of the profit and loss account as the recognised hedged item. However, when
the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a
non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred
from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-ﬂnancral asset or
non—ﬂnanmal liability. '

" Hedge accountrng is discontinued when the company revokes the hedging relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income at that time is
accumulated in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in profit-or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

) Impairment -

The company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial
assets measured at amortised cost, debt investments measured at FVOCI and contract assets
(as defined in IFRS 15).

The company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for other
debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default.occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument). has not increased significantly srnce lmtral
recognition which are measured as 12-month ECL.

‘Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. When determlnlng whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since - initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information-and analysis, based
on the company’s historical expenence and informed credit assessment and mcludmg forward-
looking information.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) ' -

1.14 Financial instruments {continued)
()  Impairment (continued)

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from alI possnble default events over the expected life

- . of afinancial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument:
is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estir_nating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
oVer which the company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probab|I|ty-we|ghted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity

in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the company expects to receive). ECLs - -

are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
Credit-impaired financial assets ‘

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
" cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Write-offs
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or |n full) to the
extent that there is no reallstlc prospect of recovery.

1.15 Provnsnons

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obllgatlons are recognised at the date of sale of the
--relevant goods, at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the company’s
obligation. .
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PRINClPAL ACCOUNTING PO_LlClES (CONTINUED)
. 1.15  Provisions (continued) -
Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions.
An onerous contract is considered to exist where the company has a contract under which the
‘unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1 above, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptrons are based on historical experience and other factors that are
consrdered o be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects.only that period, or in the period of the revrsron and future perlods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The valuation of the company’s liability in respect of the defined benefit pensioh scheme is a
source of key estimation uncertainty. Further information around the sensitivity of the valuation to
key assumptions is included within note 21."

Additionally, the measurement of provisions recognised in relation to loss making full services
contracts is a source of key estimation uncertainty and further rnformatlon is included within note
19.

The Company undertakes installation of warehouse systems that frequently span more than one
accounting period and are recognised over time. The Company's accounting policies for these -
systems require revenues and costs to be allocated on an over time basis and the consequent
recognition at period end of contract assets or liabilities for systems still in progress. The .
-application of these policies requires management to apply judgement in estimating the total -
revenue and total costs expected on each project and also to estimate the stage of completion.
Such estimates are revised as a project progresses to reflect the current status of the project and
the latest information available to management. Project management teams pen‘orm regular
reviews to ensure the latest estimates are appropriate - ' .

The company estimates the future residual value for trucks sold on contracts with buy back

guarantees. Expected reductions in-future residual values are estimated at year end and booked
in the financial statements.
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REVENUE
The company'’s turnover is analysed as fol!owé:

2021

2020

£'000 £'000

Sale and installation of goods and equ'ipment A | - 95,331 . 89,226

Rendering of services _ , : 72,848 72,453

Equipment rental income : - 32,311 28,266

“Turnover ' ‘ ' 200,490 189,945
Contributions to turnover by geographical area (by destination) were as.follows:

2021 2020

_ _ £000 £'000

United Kingdom : | 198,146 184,890

Rest of the World , 2,344 5,055

200,490 189,945

Turnover mcludes £73 180k (2020 £68 637k) derived from other group undertaklngs All turnover -

originates from the company’s principal actnwty

The company has recognised the foIIowmg assets and liabilities in relation to contracts with

customers

2021
£2000
Contract assets : o o 2,767
Contract liabilities o " (16,089)

2020
£000

886

(7.521)

‘Contract liabilities have increased year on year due to an increased volume of prOJect work

requmng advanced payments from customers.

Revenue of £2,276k (2020: £4,086k) has been recognised in the year that was included in the

contract liability balance at the begmnlng of the period.
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DIRECTORS.’ REMUNERATION

2021 . 2020

£'000 £'000
Salaries - ' 535 490
Company contributions to pension scheme. , - 37 15

572 505

The directors are members of a money pufchase pe'nsién scheme. No directors have accrued
rehrement benefits under a defi ned benef t scheme (2020 £n|I)

The remuneration of the hlghest paid director totalled £347k which mcludes £19k pension
contributions (2020 £327k, including £nil pensmn contributions).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

The average month|y number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the
company during the year was: A

. 2021 2020
By activity , : ’
- Service : A : ' 503 - 503
Administration and sales . . 262 257
765 760
. . , 2021 2020
- Their aggregate remuneration comprised: . £'000 - £000
Wages and salafies . | 36,962 32,978
Social security costs _ A ‘ : 4,459 - 3,709
Pension costs relating to defined contribution scheme - 3,330 3,607
Current service costs - defined benefit pension scheme (note 21) - , - 1,045
Past service pension costs (note 21) : - - 270
Total staff costs o : o o T M,751 A. 41,609
lNTEREST.RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME S
: : 2021 2020
£000 £'000
. Interest on deposits with other groub companieé . ' 168 | 176
Interest on deposits with third party banks : ' 1 10
-Net return on pension scheme (note 21) : 4 ' 142 316

311 502
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INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES ' .
o ‘ 2021 2020

£000 £000
Interest payable to other group companies : 12 62
Interest on lease liabilities under IFRS 16 » _ ' _ 188 92
A _ 200 154
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting): o '
' : 2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Amortisation of intangible assets - , 6 14
Depreciation: s , '
Owned assets : 3,515 2,738
Right-of-use assets ' 4,552 4,580
Loss on disposal of tangible assets . 158 34
Cost of stock recognised as an expense 100,350 96,351
Impairment of stock 541 1,450
Short term leases : 86 38
Bad and doubtful debt (income)/expense (75) 360
Auditors’ remuneration for:
Audit of the company's annual financial statements 148 69
Foreign currency losses/(gains) 3,274 (131).
- Staff costs (note 5) o ' I ' 44,751 41,609
TAX ON PROFIT
2021 2020
- £'000 £'000
Current tax charge: _
- Current tax on profits for the year o 516 1,445
- Adjustments in respect of pnor years 85 144
Total current tax . 601 1,589
Deferred tax charge: . . :
- Qrigination and reversal of tlmmg differences 887 148
- Adjustments in respect of prior years . 32 (122)
- Effect of corporation tax rate change ' ' . (377)  (238)
Total deferred‘ tax 542 (212)
- Total tax charge on profit for the year | - 1,143 1.,377
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9  TAXON PROFIT (CONTINUED)

In addition to the above amounts charged to the prof it'and loss account, deferred tax has been
" charged / (credlted) to the statement of comprehensrve income as follows:

2021 2020

!

£°000  £'000
Deferred tax (eredit)vl charge on actuarial gains and losses 2,963 (653)
Deferred tax charge / (credit) attributable to measurement of ﬂnancral . .
" instruments with a hedging relationship . . ©(249) 392
Net deferred tax credit through other comprehensive income - 2,714 261
* Tax charge reconciliation : - ' ‘ 12021 2020 .
‘ o : : ' £'000 £'000
Profit before tax ' . 7029 7,899
Current tax at 19% (2020: 19%) . - C f 1,336 - 1,500
Effects of : , ‘
Adjustments in respect of prior years : 114 22
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes , : . 75 92
Impact of rate difference between deferred and current tax ‘ - - (375) (237)
Effects of group relief - ' 7 - -
Total tax charge for the year o 1,143 1,377 -

The Finance (No.2) Act 2015 reduced the main rate of UK corporation tax to 19%, effective

~ from 1 April 2017. A further.reduction in the UK corporation tax rate to 17% was expected to -

come into effect from 1 April 2020 (as enacted by Finance Act 2016 on 15 September 2016)..
However, legislation introduced in the Finance Act 2020 (enacted on 22 July 2020) repealed
the reduction of the corporation tax rate thereby mamtalnlng the current rate of 19%.

- The UK Budget 2021 announcements on 3 March 2021 included measures to, support
- economic recovery as a result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. These included an
increase to the UK’s main corporation tax rate to 25%, which is due to be effective from 1 April

2023.-Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% (2020: 19%) which .

represents the future corporation tax rate that was enacted at the.balance sheet date.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software
2021
£'000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 44

Additions -
Disposals -

At 31 December 2021 44
Acdumulatéd amortisation

© At 1 January 2021 36
Charge 6
Disposals .
At 31 December 2021 42
Net book value at 31 December 2021 2
Net book value at 31 December 2020- 8
TANGIBLE ASSETS
Freehold . L d L d Fixtures, .Trucks Plant and Total
land and tand and motor fittings and on hire to machinery
buildings buildings vehicles | equipment customers '
£000 £000 £000 £'000 © £'000 £000 ' £'000
Cost .
At 1 January 2021 8,078 11,911 5,588 2,585 23573 1,849 51,594
Additions - 503 2,440 3,960. 13,026 369 20,298
Disposals (250) (692) (833) (133) (3.022) (632) . (5462)
- At31 December 2021 5,828 11,722 7,205 6,412 - 33,577 1,686 66,430
Accumulated depreciation K ) .

-At 1 January 2021 - 3.1 . 1,408 2,686 1,807 14,066 1,302 24,480
Charge 185 1,692 1,685 433 3,863 209 8,067
Disposals (109) (722) (792) (117). . (1,922) (520) (4.182)

_ At 31 December 2021 3,187 2,378 3,579 2,223 16,007 991 " . 28,365
Net book value : -
at 31 December 2021 2,641 9,344 3,626 4,189 17,570 695 38,065
Net book value - .

10,503 2912 9,507 547

At 31 December 2020

2,967

45

678

27,114
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

‘STOCKS
- 2021 2020
£°000 £'000°
Finished goods and spare parts ‘ o 24,395 13,446
Inventories are stated after prdvisions'for ihjpairmént of £5641k (2020: £1,450k).
DEBTORS: Amo;ints falling due within one yéar ‘
2021 2020
~ £'000 £'000
Trade debtors S : 31,682 25,354
Amounts owed by other group companles - ‘ - 41,942 54,011
Other debtors : ' 5,822 6,440
Corporation tax receivable ‘ ‘ ‘ _ . 1,01 -
Prepayments and accrued income . _ - 1,383 - 1,604 .
81,840 . 87,409

Amounts owed by other group undertakings include £22,005k-(2020: £33,500k) placed 'on

short term deposit in a group facility. These amounts are unsecured and are due to mature . -
between one and three months, with a fixed interest rate of 0.11% (2020: 0.05%).
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JUNGHEINRlCH UK LIMITED :
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DEBTORS: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2021

2020

£000 £000 . -
Other debtors
Due between two and five years . : 14,452 13,779
Due. after five years ' 1,441 1,410
. : 15,893

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

15,189

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2021 totalling £19,986k (2020: £23,059k),
include amounts placed on short term call deposit with . third party banks of £nil (2020:

£15,000k).

Amounts of £22,005k (2020: £33 500k) placed on short. term deposit in a group facmty are

included within debtors amounts falling due within one year (note 13)

CREDITORS. amounts falllng due within one year

- 2020

2021
£000 £000
Trade creditors - : . 14,005 13,858
Amounts owed to other group companies : 21,048 11,821
Other creditors . ' ' 3,810 11,175
Corporation tax payable . ‘ To- 32
Accruals and deferred income | : : , 32,256 20,064
Other taxation including socxal security : ' 1,661 1,715
Lease liabilities ‘ 2,646 - 3,411
Liabilities in respect of sale and repurchase transactlons 6,043 6,593
68,669

81,469

Amounts owed to other group companies are due on normal invoice terms.

Liabilities in respect of sale and repurchase transactions represent the value of commitments to

buy back equipment sold to group Ieasmg companies.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED v '
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED) '

CAREDI'TORS: amounts falling due after more than one year

2021 2020 .
£000 £'000
Lease liabilities: : :
Due between two and five years ' 7,298 9,424
Due after five years . 4,796 6,227
Liabilities in respect of sale and repurchase transactions: _
Due between two and five years 4 15,301 14,492
Due after five years - _ . o : A 1,450 1,425
28,845 31,568,

Liabilities in respect of sale and repurchase transactlons represent the value of commitments to

buy back eqmpment sold to group leasing companies.

LEASES

As alessee

Right-of-use assets included within tangible fixed assets (note 11) are as follbw’s: '

Right-of-use assets’ : ‘ " . Leased Leased' " Trucks . Total
- : o land and motor on hire to
buildings vehicles = customers

£000 " £'000 £'000 . £000
Cost ‘
At 1 January 2021 o 11,9M1 5,598 13,922 31,431
Additions . B 503 2,440 - 2,943
Disposals . - o (692) (833) . (1,525) (3,050)
At 31 December 2021 .o 11,722 7,205 . 12,39f 31,324
Accumulated depreciation _— ’
© At 1 January 2021 , i 1,408 2,686 9,733 . 13,827
Charge ' . - 1,692 1,685 1,175 . 4,552
Disposals - ’ : (722) . - (792) (1,202) (2,716)
_At 31 December 2021~ - 2,378 3,579 ‘ 9,706 15,663
Net book value at 31 December 2021 ) 9,344 3,626 2,691 = 15,661
Net book value at 31 December 2020 10,503 - 2912 . 4,189 17,604 |
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTlNUED)

As a lessee (continued)
Amounts recognis'ed»in profit or loss comprise the following:

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Interest on lease liabilities ' 188 - 92
Expenses relating to short term leases A : - 86 38
274 130

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Product- Loss making

warranty . contracts Other Total -
£°000 £'000 £'000 £000
. At 1 January 2021 2,156 8,63i 2926 13,713
- Utilisation of provision ' (3,278) (336)  (919) . (4,533)
Charge for the year ‘ 3,736 3,070 1,018 7,824
At 31 December 2021 2,614 11,365 3,025 17,004

The warranty provision has been calculated to cover the anticipated labour and parts costs for
warranty claims on equipment sold to customers. The provision is expected to be fully utilised

. within one year.

The provision for loss making contracts relates to contracts for the servicing and maintenance of -
customer trucks, as well as contracts or binding offers where the associated future revenues are

-exceeded by expected future costs. Provisions for loss making contracts are expected be utilised

over the remaining period of the respective contracts which is typically up to 5 years

The measurement of the provision for loss makmg contracts is a key source of estimation
uncertainty. The amount provided for service and maintenance contracts is estimated based on
historical experience, however the future costs may differ from estimates.

' If the discount rate was to be changed by +2% then the provision would increase by £261k and

if the discount rate was changed by -2% then the provision would decrease by £290k. This is.not
a material impact. .

Other provismns include p'rowsmns for costs relating to rectification work on buildings and leased
vehicles and provisions for employees’ accrued. holiday entitlement and are expected to be
utilised within the 2 years.
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The deferred tax balance comprises the following:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTlNUED)

DEFERRED TAX

‘ 2021 2020

. Cumulative ~ Cumulative

provided provided

. , £°000 £'000

Deferred tax assets: . .
Fixed asset timing differences ‘ : 1,672 1,911

Short term timing differences o ' B ' - -

Total deferred tax asset S 1672 1,911

Deferred tax liabilities: : _ , . : N
Short term timing differences ' (4,685) (1,668)

Total deferred tax liabilities - (4,685) (1,668)
Net deferred tax (liability)/ asset at 31 December (3013 243

The movements in the deferred tax balance during the year are recognised as follows:

2021 2020

_ £°000 - £'000

- Net deferred tax asset/(liability) at 1 January , ) ' 243 (230)
Charge to profit and loss account for the year , ' - (542) 212
Charge to other comprehensive income : (2,714) . 261
Net deferred tax (liability) / aséet at 31 Décember ' - (3,013) 243

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax amounts totalling £98k (2020: £66Kk) in relation to capital

losses carried forward were not recognised on the balance sheet due to uncertainties over the
future recoverability of those assets. :

In the autumn mini-Budget 2022, the Government announced that from 1 April 2023  the
planned corporation tax rate increase to 25% from 19% will be cancelled. As the proposal to -

“cancel the rate had not been substantlvely enacted at the balance sheet date, its effects are

not included in these financial statements. Deferred tax has been measured at 25% being the
enacted rate that prevailed at the balance sheet date. However, it is likely that the overall effect
of the change, had it been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, would be
immaterial. :
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The principal assumptions used by the actuary were:

JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The'company operates both a defined contribution pension scheme and a defined benefit
pension scheme which is closed to new entrar\ts Contributions of £n|| (2020: £n|1) were
outstandlng at the balance sheet date.

The Jungheinrich UK Limited Retirement Benefits Scheme (the scheme) is a funded defined
benefit pension scheme. Contributions to the scheme are determined by the Trustees of the
scheme, acting on the advice of the quahﬂed Scheme Actuary.

The scheme operates under UK trust Iaw and the trust is a separate legal entity from the
company.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the scheme has been updated to 31 December 2021

" by a qualified actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related current

service cost and past service cost were measured using the projected unit credit method. '

.On the 31 July 2020 the defined benefit scheme was closed to future accrual and the active -

members joined the company'’s existing defined contribution pension scheme.

2021 2020
. . o/o ] 0/0
Expected rate of salary increases ‘ ! : 3.4 3.00
Pensions in payment increase rate - - 3.25 2.90
Discount rate ' .18 1.40
Price inflation rate (RPI) : - - 3.00 3.00 -
: . : 2021 2020
Assumed life expectancy on retirement at age 65: _ : years years
“Current pensioners: _ '
Males ‘ 212 21.2
Females o A - 236 23.5
Future pensioners: ' .
Males ’ 22.6 . 226

Females ' : ' 25.1 - 25.0
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

21 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

These assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered .
relevant, however actual results may- differ from these estimates. If different assumptions were
used, this could have a material effect on the reported obligation. The sensmvntues of the results
to these assumptions are as follows:

Change in key assumption sensitivities: " ' 2021 2020

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities . _ » £000 _foo0
Decrease discount rate by 0.5% ' o _ 21,741 24,553
Increase discount rate by 0.5% . ' , (19,189) (21,552)
Price inflation rate decrease rate by 0. 5% . - - (12,032)  (11,408)
Price inflation rate increase rate by 0.5% ’ ' ' 11,612 .12,634

‘Increase life expectancy by 1 year o . : . 7,659 9,492

. The expected long-term rate of return and fair value of the scheme’s assets, which are not

¢ intended to be realised in the short-term and may be subject to significant change before they
are realised, and the present value of the scheme'’s liabilities, which are derived from cash flow .
‘projections over long periods and thus are inherently uncertain, are set out in the tables below.

Risk exposure -
Asset Volatility

The plan liabilities -are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond-
yields. If plan assets underperform against this yield, a deficit will be created. The scheme

" “holds a significant proportion of government and corporate bonds in line with its investment
‘strategy Whilst longer term expected returns are expected to exceed corporate bond yields,
their relative returns can me more volatile in the shorter term and may consequently lead to
short term volatility in the funding position of the scheme.

’ Changes in bond ylelds

A decrease in corporate bond yields will i increase plan Ilabllmes although thls would be
" partially hedged by increases in the value of the scheme’s bond holdings.

Life expectancy :

~ Thie majority of the scheme’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member
and therefore increases in ||fe expectancy wull result in an increase to the scheme’s defined
benefit obligation.

lnﬂation risk

The scheme's pension obllgatlons are linked to inflation, therefore increased inflation will
lead to increased liabilities, subject to caps on inflationary increases to pension entitlement;
- which are unlikely to be matched by-increases in the value of the scheme’s assets.

52.




21

.JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

At the balance sheet date the scheme assets were analysed as follows:

248,974

53

Market values of assets at 31 December ’ 2021 2020
£000 £'000
“Equities | ) | 47176 43,090
Government bonds : 168,555 182,907
Corporate bonds ' 120,626 22,038
Cash and net current assets : 1,763 939
Total market value of scheme assets ‘ 238,120 248,974
Present value of scheme liabilities ' . (218,036) (239,080)
" Net pension asset . : - 20 084 9,894 :
Movements in the present value of defi ned benefit obligations were as follows:
2021 2020
. ‘ £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 January _ ' , 239,080 214,936
. Current service pension costs = : - 1,045
Past service pension costs. ' .- 270
Interest Cost o B : 3,241 4,320
Experience (gains)/losses: -
Changes in demographic assumptions (464) (460)
Changes in financial assumptions . ) (5,814) 27,834
Experience gains on liabilities ‘ - (2,849) (743)
Employee contributions : - 287
Benefits paid o . ’ -(15,158) (8,409)
Balance at 31 December ' : 218,036 239,080
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows;
' - : 2021 2020
£000 £'000
Balance at 1 January : ‘ . 248,974 229,604
Interest income ’ 3,383 4,636
Return on scheme assets excludmg mterest income 366 . 21,633
Scheme administration expenses (357) (664)
Employer contributions , _ o - 912 1,887
Employee contributions : ~ 4 : - 287
Benefits paid . . (15,158) °  (8,409) -
Balance at 31 .December o B . 238,120
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Analysis of the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Analysis of the amounts recognised as other comprehensive income:

JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

2021 2020

£'000 . £'000
Current service pensioncosts =~ - - - - 1,045
Past service pension costs o : - - 270
Net interest on pension scheme - ‘ (142) . (316)
Scheme administration costs ' ‘ o 357 664
Net losses for the year in profit and loss account ’ 215 - 1,663

2021 - 2020

£'000 £000 -
| Return on scheme assets excluding interest income : 366 21,633
Gains on liabilities due to changes in demographic assumptions . 464 460
Gains/(losses) due to changes in financial assumptlons - 5,814 (27,834)
Experience gains on liabilities - 2,849 743

Net gains / (losses) for the year in other comprehenswe income
9,493  (4,998)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS'
Cash flow hedges .

The company enters into forward foreign exchangecontrects to manage its exposure to foreign

exchange rate risk which arises on the purchase of trucks and equipment, predominantly from -

Germany, which are payable in Euros. Forward forergn exchange contracts are measured at fair
value as assets or Irabllrtres .

It is the policy of the company to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover 75% of
- the exposure resulting from specific planned foreign currency payments

‘Basis adjustments are made to the carrying amounts of non- mancral hedged items when the

antrcrpated sale-or purchase transaction takes place.

Forward exchange contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange. rates and yield
curves derived from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts.

Losses of £4,098k (2020: gains of £2,206k) were recognised in other comprehensive income and

. losses of £3,103k (2020: losses of £105k) were transferred to the profit and loss account in the

year. There was no material ineffectiveness of hedging measures during the year.
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JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED |

31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Categories of financial instruments at fair value

Fair : Fa.ir

~ value value

_ o : A : 2021 2020
Financial (liabilities)/assets at fair value: £000 £'000
Financial assets held for trading o - 133
Financial assets with a hedging relationship - 133
Financial liabilities held for trading (817) (93)
Financial liabilities with a hedging relationship (1,011) (149)
(1,828) 24

The 'above,ﬁnancial assets and liabilities comprise forward exchange contracts, which were
outstanding at the balance sheet date, as follows:

Nominal Average
Nominal value ‘value contract
€000 £°000 rate
2021 I ' :
Purchase Euro currency L 110,645 95,435 1.15937
2020 _ ‘ : ,
Purchase Euro currency - 83,980 76,040 1:10442

All of the forward exchange contracts outstanding at the balance sheet date are expected to
affect profit and loss in the following financial year. Of the €110,645k (2020: €83,980) nominal
value outstanding at year end, €95,995k (2020: €73,051k) will mature in the following financial
year and €14,650k (2020: 10,929k) matures within 2 years.

Changes in value of financial instruments at fair value

Profit for the year has been arrived ét after (charging) / credifi_ng the following:

2021 2020
£000 £'000
Financial instruments at fair value: .
(Decrease) / increase in fair value arising -on derivatives held
for trading . (857) 793
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' JUNGHEINRICH UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2021 (CONTINUED) '

CALLED UP.SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020
£'000 £000-
Allotted called up and fully pand ' o

34,000, 000 (2020 34,000,000) ordinary shares of £1 each 34,000 34,000

34000 34,000

All shares rank pari passu in aII respects
OTHER COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

- The company continues to provide a guarantee against the liabilities of Jungheinrich Lift Truck:

Finance Limited, a fellow subsidiary undertaking of Jungheinrich UK Holdings Limited. -

ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The largest and smallest group of which Jungheinrich UK Limited is a member for which group
financial statements are drawn up is that headed by Jungheinrich AG, which is controlled by the
Jungheinrich family and is a company incorporated in Germany. The consolidated financial
statements of this group are available to the public and may be obtamed from Frledrlch Ebert- -
Damm 129 22047 Hamburg, Germany

‘The company'’s |mmed|ate parent company is Jungheinrich UK Holdmgs Limited, a company

reglstered in England, United Kingdom.

In preparing these financial statements, the company has taken ad\)an_tage of the provisions of
FRS 101 and has not disclosed transactions with the ultimate parent company, Jungheinrich AG .

- or other group undertakings. However, most purchases of stocks and fixed asset trucks are

made from group companies.
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